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Mirugl Koriu
Annual Repo

ki Subcounly llospitol (Nakuru Cou
rl and b-inanclal Slolenrcnls[or 1'he

nl.y (;over,rnrenl)
Ycor lirled 3Oh

Kcy Entity lnformltion anrl Mtnngcntent

(e) Bnckground infornrnlion

(b)

(c)

Mirugi Kariuki Sutr County l-lospital is a lcvcl 4 hospital cstablishcd under gazette notice

vot.tXXtil -No. t57 Code:15188 and is domicilcd in Nakuru County. The hospital is

govcrncd by a Board of Management.

Mirugi Kariuki sub county hospital is in Mwariki B ward, Nakuru east Sub County in

Nakuiu County. Thc facility was constructed by Economic Stimulus Program (ESP) and

officially opened by his ExcellencY
Dr. Wil[iam Samoei Rutto on 5th bctober 2004 as a Health Centne. On 20th March 2015 it

was elevated to a level IV health facility with a catchment population of 10,000 majority

being women and children. lt currently offers services to the public under the county

depa-rrment of health services. It ties on a 2.5Acres piece of land with fhe titling process

being followed up by the County department of health. The facility has no ownership

documentVno title dced.

Principal Activities

The principal activity/missior/ mandate of the hospital is to optimize.palicnt experience

through innovative, ividence based specialized health carc, facilitate training, research, and

participate in national hcalth policy implementation.

We offer MCH and Matemity seMces under Linda Mama program and NHIF services'

The facility has a current shffestablishm ent of 26 under permanent and pensionable terms,

7 under county contract,4 under the uHC progmm, 9 seconded by supporting partners (uTJ

& Northstar Alliance) and 7 under hospital contract.

There is great understaffing in all cadres with some key cadres missing needed to offer

services ir essential serviJes such as nutritional services. The county govemment has

emptoyea most of the technical officers and contractual staffwhrle the facility improvement

fund (FIF) remunerates casual workers and security officers. USAID TUJENGE JAMII and

Nrrtf,Stuinffiance has employed staffs to support the HIV/AIDS control program.

o

Key Management
Thi hospiul's management is under the following key organs

- Board of Management
- Medical SuPerintendent

- Head of dePartments

(d) FiduciarY Management

l)esignalion

The kcy management personnel who held office during the financial year ended 306 June

2023 an<J who had direct fiduciary responsibility were:

Nn.

I{ospital Mcd ical Supcrintcndcnt

tv

Samucl lVlugucia

Nrrue

June 2022

t.
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CPA..lohn KaeloI lcad o[ Accounting t..lnit

3 llospital Adnrinislralor Ms. .lcssica Musisi

4 Nursing Ofliccr lnchargc ,loycc illwangi
5 Hospital Accountant Ciracc Kakei

,

li t;^u }rnu nq' l l ospiktl ( N t Au ru (iunt1, Gttvtrnmenl)
l'he Ycor linded JUt Juna 21122ontl l"innnciul Skttcntnls

oll ptsrlions rcgordccl a.r top n arrogcnrcnt l,t )lour orgatilsalion).

( F'id ucia ry Ovcrsl ght A rran gemcnts

lHcre, provltlc o htghJevel descrlptlon of thc key fiduclary overslghl arrangentent.t
covering (scy J)
- Clinical Rcscarch and Standards Committcc.
- Audit committcc activilics
- Risk Committcc aclivilics
- Other ovenight committees

a
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a Mirugi Koriu*i Subcounty llo$lrilol (Nokuru Counly Govcrnnrnl)
Ycar Endcd 3(P June 2t122Annual Rclnrl and Financiol Statements for The

a

(0

(e)

Dntity lleedquarters
Minrgi Kariuki Sub County Hospital
P.O. Box 4686 - 020100
Nakunr East Ward,
Pipeline, Mzec wa Nyamg
NAKURU, KENYA

Entity Contacb
Tclephone: (+254) 7 I I 5 I 6553
E-mail: mirugikariukihospital.gmail.corn

(h) Entity Bankers

Central Bank ofKenya,
Haile Selassie Avenue,
P.O. Box 60fi)0
City Squue 00200
Nairobi, Kenya

2. Co-operative Bank of Korya
Nakuru Branch
Nakuru.

(i) Indcpcndcnt Auditors

Auditor Ceneral
Office of Auditor General
Anniversary Towers, Institute Way
P.O. Box 30084
GPO 00100
Nairobi, Kenya

0) Principol Legal Adviser

The Attorney Ccneral
Statc Law Oflicc
Harambcc Avcnue
1,.O. Box 40112
City Squarc 00200
Nairobi. Kcnya

(k) (-'ountY AttorncY

P.O. Uox.2tl70
Nakttru, Kcrtya

vt
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uol ond Financial Stalcnrcnls for The Year Enilul 30h Janc 2022

Boerd of Managcment

t
70 years

PHD-Insect physiolo5y

Msc. In Entomology

Bachelor of science

Senior Lecturer in Egerton University-Njoro
1

pr- fiprop Danrius Tururu -
Board Chair

I

-

Judith Mongare - Vice Chair

50years

Certificate of Accountants and Secretaries

Clerk at Mirugi Kariulii Sub county Hospital

3 Michael Kihiu - Mernber

4
Kibiru Mangondu - Mernber
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Directors E
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Mirugi Koriakl Sulroung llospilal (Nal,uru Counq, Goycruntnt)
Annual Regta and I'lnsnclol Skileqlcttl!lr The Yeor tindcd 3OL tane 2022

I

Msc. In Health systems(on going)

MPH(EPidiomology and disease conhol)

Degree in Community healttt

19 years ofExperience

Samuel Mugucia-Facility In-charge

Bachelor in Administration -
Deputy health County Administator

32 years as a county administrator

Jesica Musisi- Hospital Administrator

I

Diplorna in Nursing Registered Community

Health

20 years' experience in KRCHN

Joyce Mwangi - Nursing ofliccr ln-charge
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ItI. Mnnngcmcnt'I'eant
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ht Saltcou ,t0, Hospilal (Na*afu Coun0, GoIte ttnc,,0ond Finunc,'iol Slolemen ls The Yeo Endcd3r Junc 2022

50 years

Degree In Leadership and Management

Travel manager

Entrepreneur

Member of quality Management

icodernus Akibah - Member
Diploma in Community Managernent

son Onsongo - Mernber
Degree in Theolory

aret Njue - Member

Certificate of proficiency hrsurance and Education Tnrst
Madison lnsurance company as undewriter

12 years experience

5lyears

uel Mugucia - Secretary

43 years

Msc. In Health systems(on going)

MPH(EPidiomology and disease conrol)
Degee in Community health

19 years of Exper.ience

v l

Maera- Member

t/
h
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Advanced Certificate in Supplies and

Managernant

5 Isrya Otieno Odotte - Lab Incharge

(t

Bachelor of commerce - Accounting

CPA Cornpliant

CPA Grace Kakai - Facility Accounlant

a a
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I
4. fsUrer W. Kariuki - Procurernent Officer
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Certificate in Medical Lab Technolory
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Mlrugl Koriuhi Sutrcoattq llottlriltrl (Nohuru (\runly Govarnnrcnl)
Annuul Rcpon and l;inondol Stutcnrcnnlor Thc Ycor lindul JIF Jnnc 2022

1

Diploma in Health Records and Information

Technolory

8.

Fr
ts

Joel Bett - Facility Public Health Officer

Masters In Public Health (Epiderniolory and

Disease Conrol)

Degree in Environmental Health Sciences

9

Lucy Gitonga - Pharmacy In Charge

Diploma in Pharmaceutical Technologist

\t

,lG",h ,-

r

I
Lilian Ngure - HRIO
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Sttbcounq, Ilost ita7 (Nohuru
nd l'inoncla| Slolen enlt

I

Wanjohi -Clinical Officer In Charge

Bachelors in Clinical medicine and surgery

Diploma in clinical medicine

l5 years experience

I

\ll

Counly Governntnl)
The Year Ended 3tf June 2022
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Llirugi liarlukl Sul>county llospilol (No*uru Counttt (iovcrnmcnl)
Annuol Reporl und Finonclol .'ilnlcnu:nl,t.for T'hc l'cor liuleil Stlh Junc 2022

lV.Cheirnran's Saillentcna

Itisml'plcnsulctoprcscnttheHospit8l's2021/2022annual reporlarrdFinancial Statclncnts.The
Board of lvlaungcrncnt is proud of thc achicvcrncnts lealizcd lry thc hospital in this pcriorl towards "A
norld class paticttt cclltrcd Specialized care Hospital". I am particularly irnpressed by thc "carr do
sltilude" ol'stalT corrpled with their cotnrnitrnent to delivering the he.sl possihlc servicc lo palients. Thc.se

senices include. Mcdical Constiltatiorm, Mother Child llealth, Matenrity servic€s, Physiothoapy NM
services. llnct services, Laboratory services, Services atnong others. Over tirne the facility has
progressed ftonr lrenlth centre to a level 4 hospital; as such with the support ofthe county there have becn
ma.ior renovation and hospital facelift to ensure the services match those of a Level 4 facility.

Regrrlatory environtnent Managernent and operations of the hospital is guided by the existing legal,
policy, and institutional frameworks that govem health sector to ensure efficient and effective delivery of
services in the Hospital. The Kenyan Constitution 2010 under the Bill of Rights provides the right to the
highest attainable standard of health including reproduclive health care and imeigency medical treatment
as stipulated by the County Sovemment health systelns, provides for regulation of health care services
and health care-service providers, health products and health teclmologits. The hospital has continued to
experience challenges and changing business environment which callJfor continuous improvement of the
qualiry of services to the customers. In response to this, the Board and staffas a whote remains focused
on providing resourc€s and supporting initiatives that will sustain Mirugi Kariuki Sub County Hospital in
a leadership position in the healthcare sector.

On behalf of the Board, I would like to thank all our stakeholders especially County Government of
Naloru and development partners for the support they continue to accord the hospital without which our
achievemeots would not have been realized. As we move into a new year, I would
like to express my gratitude to Mirugi Kariuki hospital stafi specialists, team leaders and the Board, who
talie such pride in their work, and who exemplifr our hospital's mission and values each day.
Finally, I srongly believe that our stratery and the staffin place will consistently drive our growtb in the
future as has been the case over the years.

DRDARIUS TARUR

r10t

U

Chairman to thc Board

\[r

rtosp't
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uN Sulrcounq' t to.tpltal ( Nakuru (intnl.1' Govcrnnrcnt)
oml l,'lnunciul Slolcnunl,r Itr 'l'ht l'aar linilul .l0h Ju

ofl of 'l'hc ( jhief lixcculivc Olliccr

Ccrrtrcs of cxccltcncc
c

I run plcascrl lo l)rcscnl thc llosltital's arrnual rcporl and financial .$lalcmcnr.,, frlr thc ycar2021/2022. 'rtc rcporilrigrrrigrrrs ihc rr;-,riil;,il;;rionar and financiar pcrformanc.c a.s we,&s olrr 'slnllcgic dircclion. Il" l]g1oitu1 provides spcializc.d lrcalthcarc scrviccs. .[.o 
mccr ourpnticrLr' rrccds, wc havc spccialii,r r, iJr a".,diiu", or medicat pracricc who cnsure ourcuslonlcrs rcrcivc sarb. rirnery, equitabrc. cmcicrri, crreclivc and prrLrr-*rrr"r scrviccs.

ne 2l)22

shed f
tres ork o p ovtdc a one S

cel (rcs o cxccl cnce t) ou cnthe tpa scrv ccs offcrcd 'Ihc
op serv ce for hc ncreas n8 cascs ofr

scascs lnpro etn en n
n od ct on of key departnl en s tI rough h su dance o the cou ty govern en i,n d lre

r u
e f n tIlofpafl crs

Etbracing Technologr to Advance patient Cere

The usc of ICT is a oriority forMirugi Kariuki Hospitar as reflected in Kenya,s rcr MastcrPlan and need to automate sysremJto enhance e-fuciency in services detivery. Towardsthis' the hospiral was eannarked.f"r piil;;;-rh"'k*y, EMR sysrern, donor supportedthrough the county ministry or rrearn. 
-ir-rE 

*-unry *u, abre to carry out a businessreengineering with the view of aligning ail tlosjitai processes in readiness for automarion.This process curminated in the"d;;"ril;il-oi sp".in.utionr'ior-.lurt hospitarinfonnation rnanagemetrr sysrern and corrlsponaing enterprise resource pranning (ERp)systcms. Kenya EMR was instailed in tne raciiity w[i.tr *rs prr..a-i, ,"rl"i departrnenrsworkingin conjunction with Epi" roft tyrt;;ilJr ** , use prior to the instafiation of rheKenva EMR system for effi"i*t t"*i"" a"rir".yl" ril ,r.u, i*.J *iiril;;,g, Kariukisub county Hospitar. TIre system was user friendry and witrr the support of the countyminisry of health and oartners made ir qrir. *ri-.ritclive wirh linle cost of mainrenance.The facility is now working 
"lor.ry 

t rir,-,r,r'"o-ry deparunent of ICT towardsransitioning tu,y to u* of lL:.I..nil pt*,yrt9, orly ho*er., has a ira,enge inmatemity. inpatient sewices, cwc, McH 
"na 

a'ut services. rr," aririty r, aiso rorkingwith the partners with an airn of integrating,ir" *.;pr.hensive Kenya EMR sysrem ro the
999I*1" E,.MR tyjj..T ro ruve-one 

"1,;;;;i';l,r"rii"rire ;iJ;ilJ* we, asrntegrate the Kenya rtu[11s1e1 to the pay b,r systern to ailow aulo reflcctions ofpayments done through MPESA for services 6f"r.a ar rhe facility.

Effective Communication
Mirugi.Kariuki Hospital is putting great emplrasis in irnprovernelrt of cornurunication rvitlrour patiorls, rheir farnirics, a.d oirrer srakeriordcrs in an efreuive nuo ti,,Jf iiir,r.r.To this cnd, we havc contintrcd ro rroi,,-o*-.inrr on custorncr carc and cflc,crir.c
gommunicati<ln whilc upholdilrg tftc highcsl rlrn,,durJ, of urrc.
lvc llavc slrcnglhc'lcd cuslotncr cttrc scrvices in tlrc lhcility rvilh rhc provisio. ol'ircornplainls box right 0l tltc.cntry ol'thc lhcility antlprovisiori ol'a gricviirrccs btxrk 5asbccn madc availalllc at thc hospital rrdrrrinistrairrs oricc rvhich,,.rar.,lrr., gii"riulc!.s o,lirnc and cnsurcs tirrrcry s,ruti,irs ro crrir[crrgcs,s rlrey arc raiscrl.

t

----_..._.--

hospital plans to establ
of excellence will
referred. This will see an i thc existing departments as well as

.\tv
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Mirugi Koriu*i Sahcoun 1.1, llttspitul (Nukunt (ituul)' (iovcrnnrcn 0Aunual Rcpo ond l'lnuttt'iul .ltolanrcnls -fttr 'l'hc l'utr liuilctl -ltlh June 2022

'lltcrc i's a frrcility corllrllillcc cstalllishcd ro.sscss arr<J disc.ss cornplaints ar4 gricvarccs
iliJff,iXl* 

wilh .n oirrt ol'scrri.g irp sv.s;ilr"iil, work ar i,rproving palicnr carc ancr
'l'ltc lhcility also rvorks closcly witlr rhc l0 cornrnurrily trcatth prornotcrs who scrvc a.s alink bctwcr:rr clisrtls in lltc cornrnuniry and rrrc rnliiiiy ro rr" oulc to rcacl rtrc a<lminisrrarion

||i:til:ifi*tist 
i'provisio,, orri,niri'.iri'q,'uu,r'r"*rccs ro cricnrs scekirrg scrviccs in

Througlr'thc oflicc 
"' rn:.1^r'?-1i:,.rrearrrr. rhe rrospirar admirrisrrariorr purposes to artendconrrnunigr baraza rneetings with an aim of impro^vrng thc rcrationship bctrreen thccotntnttnity arld lhe facility.by 

"r"uiing 
u 

"yt,",r,"or 
operncss and accounrability thusencouraging the community ro seek scrv]ce, i,iii.'a.iliry.

Financial Rcvicw.
To rneet thc cost of oocrll_oy and.mointenancc, trrc hospitar rcrics on inrcmary gcncrstdrevenue' the largest 

"o'T^Yl":t q:'l,c^:9ri;il;;,g'r"".nr.. During rheyea*ndcr rcview,the hospitar generared Kshs.6, 
100,000 d;il; rarSet of Kshs. ll,5oo,o00. This is agrowth of 4o/o over and ab-ove o" pr"riou"rl"--i i,,r"-"tty genet.ated rcvc,uc. Dcspirethe growth in revenuc. rrre Hospirar;t*io!i'. o}"it of Kshs. 5,r00,000 in rhc ycar undcrrlview' The pcrfonnance.deicit it.nri;;tJ-;o in"r"u.. in mcdical costs and non-phannaceuticals. During the ycar *o"i r.ri"",ii,e outstanding NHIF debr increase<l asthe hospitat ernbarked oi rhe irovision "f;;il using rhc Narionar rrospiral insuranceftrnd for which rhe hosoitar us& inrematty g*;;il funds to bridge and consequentty thishas continued to adversely arrect ttrc nnJni"i ,urilir.Uiri,y.

Acknowledgmcnt
Ttrousands of patients served are a riving restamenr to thc care, rove and support offeredgvcry day by the outstanding commitment of our staff ---- --rr
To the staffworking at Minrgi sub county hospitar for the timery services trrey offer. trresacrifices rhey make ro ensure qualiry slrvice, one.ea arJ # ;;'""d;ss towardsimproving the scrviccs offered at the facility.

Yg * grarefur to hospitar .h*d g the support at improving trre standards of servicesoffered at the facility through oversight and accounrabiriiy to erisure *ir"-.iliir",i"n of thefacility funds and assist ill resotrce mobilisation by engiging rocat ilrstinrtloris for p,blicprivare participation activities within the hospital.
our stakehorders for thcir,kil!ncs.s, compassion, support, dcdication. and conrriburions toMinrgi Kariuki Sub County Hospital.

Nh:
Dlt Muriithi Lilian

Sccrrtary t0 lhc lloa l.d
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I Of ltcrfornroncc Against Prcdclcrminerl Objcctivcs

Kariuki develops its annual work plans based on the above mcntioncd

ssucs. Assessrnenl of the Board's performance against its annual work plan i.s donc

basis. The lrospital achieved its perfonnance targels sct for the FY 202112022 pciul
tegic pillars, as indicaled in the diagram below. Mirugi Kotiuki Sub County Ho.spitol has

tegic pillarV tltetneVissues and objectives within the current Strategic Plan for thc FY 2021 -

Tltese strategic pillarV themes/ issues are as follows

cal services

calth care financing

nfrastnrchrre developrncnl

eadership and govemance

ealth in fonnation

oriuh sub county Hospital develops its annual work plans ba.sed on the above five

ssues. Assessrnent of the Board's perfomrance against its annual work plan is done

y basis. The Hospital achieved its performance targets set for rhe Fy 2o2ll2o22 penod

xvl

l

strmegic pillars., as indicated in the diagram below:

S ryic
rllfhemc/Iss

ObJective Key Performance
fndicators

Activities Achievcments
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Empower staffs on
prudent financial
management

a 7o I rtcrcase

in revcnue

a Empower
deparunental
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on financial
mansgent
Strengthcn
use financial
and
procurement
policies

ID

a Review

user fee
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Regular

training

and
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supervis

ion and
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reports
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User fw
committee

for
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review
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procureme
nt and
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nt SOPS
and
guidelines.
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Leadership and

govemance

Enhance

leadership and

governance
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a Constitute

service

delivery

committees

Hold

quarterly

management

meetings

Manage

IIRM

a

a

a Servicc

delivery
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minutes.

Quarterl

y HMT

and

board

meeting

minutes.

MontNy
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a

a Effective

service

delivery.
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facility.

Human

resource

reports.
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Ycar linded Jllh tnnc 2022unil l,'inuncful Slolcnvnt:5 'l'he

lion therefore, the managenent should include perrormance agair,t the srmtegic objectives
on' lhe nanagement should outline the stralegic pillars, aclivities kxarclt their

oulpul't under aach,slralegic pillar. 'lltc organisalion sktukl also brie/y oulltne lt<trt tlta,v
nl.r to ptrforntance conlructs)

lo

counly

Strcngthcn and

managc hcalth

in fonnation
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\"11. (-'orlxrrrlc Govrrrrnrrrr: Shlcrrrcrrl

lnlnoduclion
Corttntitntcnl to good corportlc Etovcnlancc is flundanrcnlal in crrsuring suslainablc slakcltoldcr valus
aud nrcc{irtg tltcir cxpcctatiorrs. Our struclurcs, proccdurcs flnd proccsscs arc anchorcd on accountability
lmnspsrcncy. rcsponsibility nnd fninress whiclr nrc thc tcncts of gorxl coryornle govcntancc. Through
the lloard of Managcnrent. Minrgi Kariuki Sub County Hospital remains stcadfast in complying with
stotutory
requirements and the Code of Govemance for State Corporations. Among others.

The roles and responsibilities ofthe Board as set out in thc Board Charter include:

i) Establishing the Hospital's strategic dircction and prioritics, and adopting busincss plans proposed
by management for the aclrievemeut of the strategic objectives

ii) Monitoring and evaluating the irnplernentation of srat€gies, policies, managemenl performance
criteria and business plans.

iii) Providing oversight in financial reporting to the Covernment and cornrnunication to stakeholders.
iv) Ensuring availability ofadequatc resourccs for the achievcrnent of the Hospital's objectives.

vii) Oversecing business affairs of the Hospital in light of emerging risks and opportunities.
ix) Approving annual budgets.

VIII.

Clinical Performance
Mirugi Kariuki Sub County Hospital continues to provide a wide range of highly specialized healrhcare
services to Kenyans, especially in Mwariki B ward, Nakuru East ward the entire Naliuru town east
Counties. Services include Outpaticnl scrviccs, MCH services, ANC serviccs, family planning services,
maternity serviccs alnong other services. The hospital also provides clinical srppon serviccs that include
laboratory and phannacy services with plans to upscale to include ullrasound services being in the
pipeline.
The hospital slrives lo ensure lhal tlte clinical scrviccs provided are safe, tirnely, appropriate. innovative,
effective and cvidcncc bascd. Clinical govcntancc continucs to be strcngthened to inrprovc pstiert safety
and cnsurc quality hcaltltcarc. 'l'hc ltospital paliont attendance conlinues to incrcase dcspitc thc rnany
challenges i.e., budgctary cottstraints. ltumarr rcsource constrtints. cotnpetil4l priority areas, political
arcna challcngcs and paticnt culpowcnncnt.

Overall patient attendance
Thc avcragc Paliqtl allcndilncc lbr tlrc ycar 202112022 was 27.70 I ()urpaticnrs tncl 2t)7 i rr-pnlicrrrs. The
l{ospital's paticnt atlcrtdancc anulysi.s ovcr tlrc lasl lirur ycals is ls tlcllictccl in thc clrnrt bclorv.

\r\

The Board provides oversight to Managetnent and ensures that staff operates within the Code of
Conduct
and Ethics, Leadership Integrity Act, and thc "Mwongozo" Code of Governance for State
Corporations
Management Discussion and Analysis
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donations. Tlte sources ofrevenue for 0re year under review and the trend over the last fivc years are as
depictd in the charts below Sources ofrevenue, revenue trend, utilization rates expenditure trend.

Kcy Hospital ProjecB

Building patient toilets:
The hospital through the support of a donor was able to build additional patient toilets at a more strategic
point for ease ofaccess ofthe said utility.

Installation of comprehensive Kcnya EMR systcm:
Mirugi Kariuki Sub County hospital tlrough the support of the county underwent tlrough a process of
sening an I.T set up for the installation and utilisation of the comprehensive Kenya EMR system which is
since slowly being incorporated in all the service areas of the hospital.

Chellenges
The hospital is faced with numcrous challanges in lirlfilling its mandate.

i. Automation
In a bid to ensure that Mirugi Kariuki Sub County Hospita.l provides efficient and effective services as
well as provide tlte desired platform for clinical linkages, with other referral hospitals across the county, a
business process re-engineering the interlinkages in the system amongst fucilities slrould be carried out so
tlut there is a robust ICT platform for ease of patient flow between supporting facilities within the
govemment facililies.
The hospital is utilising two different programs which brings a challenge of monitoring the patient florv
and cash flow from both systems which may end up creating a space for leakages. However, 0re facility
is working closely with the developers of the integrated Kanya EMR system to allow for developing the
system to be able to serye all the departrnents rvithin th€ facility.

ii. Underprivilcged and Indigents medical bills
Most of the patients treated at Mirugi Kariuki Sub County Hospital are elderly rvho are dependants or are
from low-income households frorn Mwariki B ward. Therefore, a better uunber of 0rem rely on the free
services offered or utilisc the exempted services with poor uptake of tlre charged services. Due to poor
community education and hospital financial constraints, dtere is a challenge in a sening up and utilising
an ideal wavering system and as suclt the various departments work with the budget allocated to have a

certain amount set aside to utilise on waiver clients.
Duo to this, tlre facility gets a challengc in effectively serve the divcrse econornic conrrnunity it serves os

thcrc is notablc stock out ofconsunables which worscns lhc alrcady cxisting financial constraints bcing
expcricnccd.

iii. Lack of esscntia! serrices
Thc facility sits at a distunce approxiurately l8knrs frorrr the referral facility rvhich taktx about 30 nrins to
acccss whcn rcfcning clicnts. This is rnade worsc as lhcre is arnbularrcc stationed at the facility and tlte
facility relics on onc statiorred at Bondcrri Sub County l{ospital which is approxirnalcly l8ktt arvay attd

takes about 30 mirrs to arrive to the hospilal. 'l-his grently affects the quality of care offered in ret'erring of

\\l
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ofspecialised care aud thus discoura ges thenr from having full confidence in the scrviccsilily

aervrces are rnajorly rapid tests and mrcroscopy with lack of services that csn facititatelent carc and as such crcating a nccd for thc clinical department rcfening clicnts foces which in hrm leads to reduced confidence in the services offered at the fscility

dity stock outs
consffaints 8re facili ty fund ls not adequate to match up the need for commodjties in thenecded. Enatic paymenls frorn NHIF have also created a challenge with the budgetingmay not rnatch their payments to thc claims forwarded plus delay in the psymert rvithafter the budgeting process is closed and thus affect the services offered under the saidrs the exonpt population
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ilirugi liariu *i Su lxttung' t tttttpitul ( Nakn ru Count.y Govcrnncnl)
Ycar Endci 3Uh tuue 2022Annuol R t porl tn l,'innnciul Slulc,trantstitr Thc

xt. slatenrent of ll,ard of Manngenrcnt's Responsibilities

Scction 164 of ftc Public Finance Manogcmcnl Act,2012 (cntitics .rhould quotc tha ctpphccthl<t
lagislalion undcr u'hiclt lhe1, a7g rcgilatetlj) rcquires the Board of Managcmeni to prcpare'financial
slatcrnctrls in rcspect of that cr?rirl, which give a true and fair view of the s6tc of aflairs of thc entity at
tlrc end of thc financial year/period and the operating resulls of the cntity for that yearlperiod. ihe
Board of Managenlent is also required lo ensure that tfie entitykeepsprop", u".ornting rciords which
disclose lvith rcasonablc accuraiy the financial position of ttt" orin$. Tire council mcrnbcrs are also
responsiblc for safeguarding, the assets of the entily.

TheBoardofManagernentisresponsiblefortheprcparalionandpresentation of ahecntity',tfinancial
slatctnents. which givc a lnle and fair vicw of lhc statc of affairs of lhc enlity for and as at the eod of the
financial year (period) cnded on June 30, 2023. 'l'his responsibility includes: (i) maintaining adequate
financial managemenl arrangelneots and errsuring thal these 

"oniilruc 
to bc cifective throighoui thc

repofiing period, (ii) maintaining propcr accountiig records, which disclose with rcasonable accuracy
at any-timc the financial position of thc cntity, (iiif dcsigning, imptcmcnting and maintaining internil
controls rclcvant to the preparation and fair presentation oft[e financial staicments, and ensuring that
they are frce from material misstatements, whe&er due to enor or fraud, (iv) safeguarding thc assets
of the entity; (v) selecting and applying appropriate accounting policies, and (vi) makingiccorurting
estimates &at are reasonable in ttrl circrunsianies.

Thc Board of Marngcmcnt accepts responsibility for the enrit),'s financial staternenls, which have been
preparcd using appropriate accounting policies supported by rcasonable and prudent judgements and
estimates, in conformity with Intemational Public Sector Accounting Standards (IPSAS), and in the
manner required by the PFM Acl,2012 utd (- cntitics .should rluote applicable lcgislalion as irulicalcd
under).The Board members are of tlre opinion tlrat the u ity's financial statements give a truc and fair
view ofthe state of crrlir), ir transactions during the financial year ended June 30, 20xx. and of the entr(v,.r
financial position as at that date. The Board mernbers fluther confirm dre conpleteness ofthe accounting
records maintained for the entity, which havc been relied upon in the preparation of the errliry:r financial
statements as well as the adequacy of the systenrs of ilrtenral finalcial coutrol.

In preparing the ftnancial slatements, tlrc Directors have asscssed the Fund's ability to continue as a
going concem Qlisclosed, <ts applicahle, ,rrallers relaling lo the usc oJ' going conccrn hasis ol'
prcparation ot'the /inoncial slatenrcnts) OR

Nothing has cotnc to the anendon of thc Board of rnanagemart to indicatc that the crriry will not rernain
a going concern for at least lhe next twelve monlhs frorn the date of this statcmenl.

Approval ofthe financial slatemenh

't'lr

by.
e Hospital's finaltcial slatemcnts were approved by thc Board on _5/9/2022 and signcd on its behulf

mJu,,
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OFFICE OF THE AUDITOR-GENERAL

l'.'ttltrtttt ittg .lt t t)ttttldltilit.r

HEADOUARTERS
Anniversary Towers

Monrovia Street
P.O. Box 3oo84-ooroo

NAIROBI

RT OF THE AUDITOR-GENERAL ON MIRUGI KARIUKI SUB-COUNTY LEVEL
PITAL FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE, 2022. COUNTY GOVERNMENT OF
RU

PR BLE

td

A.

your attention to the contents of my report which is in three parts

port on the Financial Statements that considers whether the financial statements
fairly presented in accordance with the applicable financial reporting framework,
unting standards and the relevant laws and regulations that have a direct effect

the financial statements

port on Lawfulness and Effectiveness in Use of Public Resources which considers
pliance with applicable laws, regulations, policies, gazette notices, circulars,
elines and manuals and whether public resources are applied in a prudent,
ient, economic, transparent and accountable manner to ensure Government
eves value for money and that such funds are applied for the intended purpose.

B.

d
c

port on Effectiveness of lnternal Controls, Risk Management and Governance
ich considers how the entity has instituted checks and balances to guide internal
rations. This responds to the effectiveness of the governance structure, the risk

nagement environment and the internal controls, developed and implemented by
se charged with governance for orderly, efficient and effective operations of the
ity.

dified opinion does not necessarily mean that an entity has complied with all
laws and regulations and that its internal controls, risk management and

ance systems are properly designed and were working effectively in the financial
yea nder review

The ree parts of the report are aimed at addressing the statutory roles and
res sibilities of the Auditor-General as provided by Article 229 of the Constitution, the
Pub Finance Management Act, 2012, and the Public Audit Act, 2015. The three parts

report, when read together constitute the report of the Auditor-General.

RT ON THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

oft

RE

Qu ed Opinion

lha
4H

audited the accompanying financial statements of Mirugi Kariuki Sub-County Level
ital - County Government of Nakuru set out on pages 1 to 36, which comprise of

the Auditor-General on Mirugi Kariuki Sub-County Level 4 Hospital for the year ended 30 June, 2022 -
ll overnment of Nakuru
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the statement of financial position as at 30 June, 2022 and the statement of financial
performance, statement of changes in net assets, statement of cash flows and statement
of comparison of budget and actual amounts for the year then ended, and a summary of
significant accounting policies and other explanatory information in accordance with the
provisions of Article 229 of the Constitution of Kenya and Section 35 of the Public Audit
Act, 2015. I have obtained allthe information and explanations which, to the best of my
knowledge and belief, were necessaryfor the purpose of the audit.

ln my opinion, except for the effect of the matters described in the Basis for Qualified
Opinion section of my report, the financial statements present fairly, in all material
respects, the financial position of Mirugi Kariuki Sub-County Level 4 Hospital - County
Government of Nakuru as at 30 June,2022 and of its financial performance and its cash
flows for the year then ended, in accordance with lnternational Public Sector Accounting
Standards (Accrual Basis) and comply with the Health AcL,2017, County Governments
4c1,2012 and the Public Finance Managemenl Act,2012.

Basis for Qualified Opinion

1. Long Outstanding Receivables from Exchange Transactions

The statement of financial position reflects receivables from exchange transactions
balance of Kshs.6,078,350 and as disclosed in Note 13 to the financial statements. The
balance relates to NHIF claims which have been outstanding for between one (1) and
five (5) years and no efforts have been made by the Management to recover the
outstand ing receivables.

ln the circumstances, the accuracy, completeness and recoverability of the receivables
from exchange transactions balance of Kshs.6,078,350 could not be confirmed.

2. Undisclosed Property, PIant and Equipment Balance

The statement of financial position reflects Nil property, plant and equipment balance and
as disclosed in Note 15 to the financial statements. However, review of records and
physical inspection revealed that the Hospital has movable and immovable assets of
undetermined value which were not disclosed in the financial statements.

ln the circumstances, the accuracy and completeness
Nil balance could not be confirmed

of property, plant and equipment

3. Undisclosed lnventories

The statement of financial position reflects Nil inventories balance and as disclosed in
Note 14 to the financial statements. However, review of records and physical inspection
of the stores revealed that the Hospital had medical supplies of undetermined value which
were not disclosed in the financial statements.

Report of the Auditor-General on Mirugi Kariuki Sub-County Level 4 Hospital for the year ended 30 June, 2022 -
County Government of Nakuru
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ln th circumstances, the accuracy and completeness of the Nil inventory balance could
confirmed.not
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udit was conducted in accordance with lnternational Standards of Supreme Audit
tions (lSSAls). I am independent of the Mirugi Kariuki Sub-County Level 4 Hospital
gement in accordance with ISSAI 130 on Code of Ethics. I have fulfilled other ethical
nsibilities in accordance with the ISSAI and in accordance with other ethical
ements applicable to performing audits of financial statements in Kenya. I believe
e audit evidence I have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
alified opinion.

udit Matters

udit matters are those matters that in my professional judgement, are of most
tcance tn the audit of the financial statements. There were no key audit matters to

in the year under review

RT ON LAWFULNESS AND EFFECTIVENESS IN USE OF PUBLIC
URCES

As
perf
and

Con lusion

quired by Article 229(6) of the Constitution, based on the audit procedures
rmed, except for the matters described in the Basis for Conclusion on Lavvfulness

else
appl

ffectiveness in Use of Public Resources section of my report, I confirm that, nothing
as come to my attention to cause me to believe that public resources have not been

Bas

d laMully and in an effective way.

for Gonclusion

ilure to Transfer Revenue to the County Revenue Fund Account1.F

H

Re of the Auditor-Generol on Mirugi Kariuki Sub-County Level 4 Hospitol for the year ended 30 June, 2022 -
Gavernment of Nakuru
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statement of financial performance reflects rendering services - medical services
tn e of Kshs.5,109,082 as disclosed in Note 6 to the financialstatements. However,
the
the

mount was not transferred to the County Revenue Fund Account for approval by
ontroller of Budget before withdrawal. This was contrary to Regulation 81(1-3) of

Pu ic Finance and Management (County Governments) Regulations, 2015 which states
that receiver of revenue shall promptly deposit into the County exchequer account all
rec pts due to the County Revenue Fund

lnt circumstances, Management was in breach of the law

ck of Quarterly Revenue Reports

The statement of financial performance reflects Kshs.S,109,082 in relation to the
ren ring of services - medical income as disclosed in Note 6 to the financial statements.

ver, the Hospital did not provide evidence to show that the reports were prepared

Coun

The
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and submitted the same to the County treasury with a copy to the Auditor-General as per
the requirement of Regulations 6a(1) of the Public Finance Management (County
Gorvernments) Regulations, 2015 which requires the Accounting Officer or receiver of
revenue or collector of revenue to prepare a quarterly report not later than the 1Sth day
after the end of the quarter.

ln the circumstances, Management was in breach of the law.

3. lrregular Engagement of Casual Workers

The statement of financial performance reflects employee costs amounting to
Kshs.1 ,304,422 and as disclosed in Note 8 to the financial statements. The amount
includes Kshs.1,066,476 paid as wages to casualworkers engaged by the Hospitalfor
more than three months. This is contrary to Section 37 of the Employment Act, 2007
which states that a casual employee should be converted to a term contract where a
casual employee works for a period or a number of continuous working days which
amount in the aggregate to the equivalent of not less than one month.

ln the circumstances, Management was in breach of the law.

4. Non-Compliance with Kenya Quality Model for Health Policy Guidelines

Review of Hospital records and interviews on verification of services offered, equipment
used and medical specialists in the Hospital at the time of audit revealed that the Hospital
did not meet the requirements of Kenya Quality Modelfor Health Policy Guidelines due
to staff deficits by eighty-seven (87) or 86% of the authorized staff requirements as
detailed below.

Staff Requirements
Level4

Standard

Number
in

Hospital Variance
Percentage

otto

MedicalOfficers 16 1 15 94

Anaesthesiologists 2 0 2 100

General Surgeons 2 0 2 100

Gynaecologists 2 0 2 100

Paediatrics 2 2 100

Radiologists 2 2 100

Kenya Registered Community
Health Nurses

75 13 62 83

101 14 87 86

ln addition, the Hospital lacked the necessary equipment and machines outlined in the
Health Policy Guidelines as detailed below;

Report of the Auditor-General on Mirugi Kariuki Sub-County Level 4 Hospital for lhe year ended 30 June, 2022 -
County Government of Nakuru
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Se vrce

Leve!4
Hospital
Standard

Actuals in
the

Hospital
Percentage

olto

Be ds 12 138 92

Rr
tn

rsuscitative (2 in Lab or & 1

Theatre
2 0 2 100

100Nt rw Born Unit lncubators 5 0 5

5 100Nt rw Born Unit Cots 5 0

0 6 100Fr nctional ICU Beds

6 100Hi
Be

th Dependency Unit (HDU)
rds

6 0

0 5 100
D
Rt rnal Unit with at Least 5

alysis Machines
2 0 2 100Tv

TT

ro Functional Operational
eatres-Maternity & General

Furt r, the Hospital did not have surgical, pediatric, gynecological, radiology, renal
dial is, laboratory and mortuary services required to be offered in a Level4 Hospital

The deficiencies contravene the First Schedule of Health Acl, 2017 and imply that

Con itution of Kenya, 2010 may not be achieved

lnt circumstances, the understaffing and inadequate hospital equipment may
neg ively have impacted on service delivery to the public

The
com

udit was conducted in accordance with ISSAI 4000. The standard requires that I

ly with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain assurance
whether the activities, financial transactions and information reflected in the

ial statements are in compliance, in all material respects, with the authorities that
gove n them. I believe that the audit evidence I have obtained is sufficient and appropriate

vide a basis for my conclusion.to pr

acce
care

abo
fina

REP
AND

$ing the highest attainable standard of health, which includes the right to health
services, including reproductive health care as required by Article 43(1) of the

OVERNANCE

of the Aaditor-General on Mirugi Kariuki Sub-County Level 4 Hospital for the year ended 30 June, 2022 -
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Con lusion

Asr uired by SectionT(1)(a)of the PublicAuditAct, 2015, based on the audit procedures
perf ed, I confirm that nothing has come to my attention to cause me to believe that
inter al controls, risk management and governance were not effective

Repor
Coun

Variance
150
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I
Basis of Conclusion

The audit was conducted in accordance with ISSAI 2315 and ISSAI 2330. The standards
require that I plan and perform the audit to obtain assurance about whether effective
processes and systems of internal controls, risk management and overall governance
were operating effectively, in all material respects. I believe that the audit evidence I have
obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for my conclusion.

Responsibilities of Management and those Charged with Governance

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial
statements in accordance with lnternational Public Sector Accounting Standards (Accrual
Basis) and for maintaining effective internal controls as Management determines is
necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error and for its assessment of the effectiveness
of internal controls, risk management and governance.

ln preparing the financial statements, Management is responsible for assessing the
Hospital's ability to continue to sustain its services, disclosing, as applicable, matters
related to sustainability of services and using the applicable basis of accounting unless
Management is aware of the intention to terminate the Hospital or to cease operations.

Management is also responsible for the submission of the financial statements to the
Auditor-General in accordance with the provisions of Section 47 of the Public Audit
Act,2015.

ln addition to the responsibility for the preparation and presentation of the financial
statements described above, Management is also responsible for ensuring that the
Hospital's activities, financial transactions and information reflected in the financial
statements are in compliance with the authorities which govern them, and that public
money is applied in an effective manner.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Hospital's financial
reporting process, reviewing the effectiveness of how Management monitors compliance
with relevant legislative and regulatory requirements, ensuring that effective processes
and systems are in place to address key roles and responsibilities in relation to overall
governance and risk management, and ensuring the adequacy and effectiveness of the
control environment.

The audit objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial
statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error,
and to issue an auditor's report that includes my opinion in accordance with the provisions
of Section 48 of the Public Audit Act, 2015 and submit the audit report in compliance with

Report of the Auditor-General on Mirugi Kariuki Sub-County Larcl 4 Hospital for the year ended 30 June, 2022 -
County Government of Nakuru
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Auditor-General's Responsibilities for the Audit



I

am erial misstatement and weakness when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud

Arti
isn

ore
reas
of th

229(7) of the Constitution. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but
a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with lSSAls will always detect

r and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could
nably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis
se financial statements.

ective way, in accordance with the provisions of Article 229(6) of the Constitution
ubmit the audit report in compliance with Article 229(7) of the Constitution

uce to a relatively low level the risk that misstatements caused by error or fraud in

se of its inherent limitations, internal controls may not prevent or detect
tements and instances of non-compliance. Also, projections of any evaluation of

s and procedures may deteriorate.

rt of an audit conducted in accordance with lSSAls, I exercise professional

of the Auditor-General on Mirugi Kariuki Sub-County Level 4 Hospital for the year ended 30 June, 2022 -
Government of Nakuru

7

lna ition to the audit of the financial statements, a compliance audit is planned and
pe med to express a conclusion about whether, in all material respects, the activities,

ial transactions and information reflected in the financial statements are in
com lilance with the authorities that govern them and that public resources are applied in
finan

ane
and

r, in planning and performing the audit of the financial statements and audit of
liance, I consider internal controls in order to give an assurance on the effectiveness

ofi ernal controls, risk management and governance processes and systems in
acco dance with the provisions of Section 7(1) (a) of the Public Audit Act, 2015 and submit
the dit report in compliance with Article 229(7) of the Constitution. My consideration of
the i ternal controls would not necessarily disclose all matters in the internal controls that

be material weaknesses under the lSSAls. A material weakness is a condition inmigh
whic
not r
amo

the design or operation of one or more of the internal controls components does

nts that would be material in relation to the financial statements being audited may
and not be detected within a timely period by employees in the normal course of

perf ing their assigned functions

Furt
com

occu

Bec
MISS

As

effe iveness to future periods are subject to the risk that controls may become
inad uate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the
polic

judg ment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. I also

ntify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements,
ether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to
se risks and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide at

f
b

a
E aluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of

unting estimates and related disclosures made by the Management

sis for my opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from
ud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion,
ery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations or the override of internal controls

Rep
Coun



Conclude on the appropriateness of the Management's use of the applicable basis of
accounting and based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty
exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Hospital's
ability to continue to sustain its services. lf I conclude that a material uncertainty exists,
I am required to draw attention in the auditor's report to the related disclosures in the
financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify my opinion. My
conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of my audit
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Hospital to cease to
continue to sustain its services.

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information and
business activities of the Hospital to express an opinion on the financial statements.

. Perform such other procedures as I consider necessary in the circumstances.

I communicate with the Management regarding, among other matters, the planned scope
and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies
in internal controls that are identified during the audit.

I also provide Management with a statement that I have complied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence and to communicate with them all relationships
and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on my independence and
where applicable, related safeguards.

FCPA CBS

Nairobi

21 June,2024

Report of the Auditor-Ceneral on Mirugi Kariuki Sub-County Level 4 Hospital for the year ended 30 June, 2022 -
County Government of Nakuru
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Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements,
including the disclosures and whether the financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

AUD!TOR-GENERAL
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Mirugi Kariuki Subcounty Hospitol (Nokuru County Govcrnmcnt)
lnnuol Reltorl ond Financiol Slotenrcnts lor The Ycor Ended 3dh Junc 2022

XIV. Statement of Financinl Position es of 30rh June2022

(Thc nole:i sat oul on pages 7 kt 35.lbrn an integral porl ofthe Anmnl l.'inanc'ial Statentc,rt.\.)

)

Assets

Current assels

Cash and cash equivalents t2 I, r 83.558

Rcccivables from exchange transactions t3

l4 0

Totrl Currenl Assels 7,261,908

Non-current assets

Property, plan! and equipment l5 0

Total Non-current Assets

Total arsets 7,26t,908

Liabilities

Crrrrenl lisbilities

Trade and other payables l6 24t,726

Tota! Current Linbili(ies 241,726

Non-crrrrent liabili(ies

Totat Non-current liabilities 0

Total Liabilities 241,726

Net assels

Revaluation rcserve

Accumulated surplus/Defi cit 1,677,221

Capital Fund 5,342,96t

Ncr Assets 7,O20,t82

7,261,908Total Net Asscls nnd Liabilities

I

I

II

I

The Hospital's linancial ststemenls were approved by the Board on 519t2022 and signed on its behalf
by:

D

t(3Dr

6,078,350

Inventories

0
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XV. Shtcmcnl of (lhnngcs in Nct Assct for'l'he Ycer llndcd 3ll .lrune2ll22

by

20100 .d
C,JUNTY HOSPJ

M,:
Medicsl Supcrintendent

!

6
ChAirtihb'.':=:.:-'-... ..

Board of Managcment
Heed of Financc
ICPAK No:

As nt Jtrly t,2020 0 0

Rcvaluation gain 0 0

0

Capital/Dcvelopmcnt g,rants 0 0

0

0

0 o

( --(
At July t,2021

0Rcvaluation gain 0

SurpluV(deficit) for the year t,677,22t
o

t,677221

CapitalzDevclopment grants 5,342,96L s,342,967

0At June 3O, 2022 t,67r,22L
s,342,96L

7,O20,1U

J'rII\fr

tl

(Note:
l. For ilems lhat ore not common in lhe financiol slalements, lhe entily should include a nole on

what they relale lo - elther on lhe loce of the stolement of changes in equity/net assel:i ot
among lhe notes to the finonctal statemenls.

2- Prior year adjuslments should have an elabomle ru e dc,\cribinE what the amounls relate to.
ln such irrslonces, a reslolement tdlhe opening balances needs lo be done .)

The Hospital's financial statements were approved by the Board on 5/9/2022 and signed on its behalf
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tlirugi Koriu*i .\u h:ttu nty I lospintl ( Nuku ru (int nt.S' Goverunrc nl)
.,lnnnol R ond l.'lnnnclul Stuttnu,ntsrtr'l'ht l,cnr linlul .lllh tunc 2t122

XVll. Slnlenrcnl of ('onrpnrisotr of llurlgcl urrd Aclult Amounls frlr'l'hc Yctr llndcrl 3ll .lunc20ZZ

Budgct noles
l. l'tpvide an cxplanation of difercnces betvecn actual and budgeted anounls (any over/ 90% tnder) IPSAS
2J.I J
2. Provldc an explonation of chattges between lhe orighnl and tittal budget itdiating whelher lhe dilfercnce is

drte lo rcollocalions or other causes. (PSAS 24.29)
3. l{herc the lolal of acnnl on compamble ba.sis does nol lie lo the statcment o!financial p{ormance tolals due

to difercnces in occoanling basis (hudget is cash basis, slalemenl offnancial perlormance is accnnl) provide a
reconciliation.)

L

Chairman
Board of Management

Head of Finance
ICPAK NO:

Medical Suptrintendent

b c=(n+b)

Kshs

n e{c-d)

K.rh.rK.shs Kshs Kshs
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Rcvcnrre

l, t00,000 l00VoTransfcrs from the County
Governnrent
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5,tw,o825,109,082 0.00 5,109,082 5,709,082
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crll lnforrrrnlion

Karirrki sub county l{ospital is cslablishcd by and dcrivcs its authority and accountability
FMA Acl' Thc cntity is wholly owncd by the Nakuru county Governmcnt and is domicjtcd
uru Cotrnly in Kenya. The cntity's principal activity to provide integrated health care for all

ment Of Compliance And Besis Of preparation

cial statcmenls have been prepared on a hisrorical cost basis except for the mcasurement
ucd amounts of certain items of property, prant, and equipment, marketabre securities and

lnstruments at fair value, impaired assets at their estirnated recoverable arnounls and
ly determined liabilities at lheir preseut value. The preparation of financial stalements in
ity with Intenrational P,blic Sector Accounting srandards (lpsAs) allows the use of

and assumptions. It also requlres management to exercise judgement in the process of
gthe enlity's accounting poricies. The areas invorving a higher dcgree of judgment or

ty, or where assumptions and estimates are significant to the financial statements, are
i, Note xx The financial statements have been prepared and presented in Kenya Shillings,

s the functional and reporting culrency of ,ihe cntity. The financial slatements have been
in accordance with the pFM Act, and, (include ony olher opplicable legislation), urd

pnal Public sector Accounting Standards (IpsAS). The accounting poricies adopted have
sistently applied to all the years presented

mended standards and interpretations in issue but uot yet effective in the year ended
,a

IP

Fi

In

cial

unl c

The objective of IPSAS 4 r is ro establish principles for the financiar reporting
of financial assels and riabirities that wiil present retevant a,d usefur
information ro users of lina,ciar sralernents for their assessment of the
arnounts, tirning and unccrtainty of an tlntity's t'uturc cash flo*,s.
IPSAS 4l providcs uscrs ol'llttancial slBlclncnts rvillr nrorc usclirl irrfonuation
than IPSAS 29, by:

Applicable: 1,. January 2023
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Mirugi Kariuki Su bcou n q, I I ospito I ( N a k u ra Con n 1.1' G ovcr n arc n l)
Annual Reporl and l;inanciol .ftatc I'he Ycar lindcd 3tlL Junc 2022

ying a singlc classification and mcasurcmcnt modcl for f'inancial

asscts lhat considcrs lhc characlcrislics of thc assct's cash flows and

lhc objectivc tbr which the asset is hcld;

. Applying a single forwardJooking expccted credit loss modcl that is

applicable to all financial instruments subject to impairment testing;

and

' Applying an irnproved hedgc accounting model that broadcns the

hedging arrangcrnents in scope ofthe guidance. Ths rnodel develops

a strong link between an Entity's risk management strategies and the

accounting treatsncnt for instruments held as part of the risk

management strategy.

(State the inpoct of the stontlanl to the Entily itrelevanl)

. Appl

IPSAS 42: Social

Benefits

Applicable I't JrnuaD, 2023

The objective of this Slandard is to improve the relevance, faithful

representativeness and cornparability ofthe infonnation that a reporting Entity

provides in its financial statemcnts about social benefits. The information

provided should help users of the financial statemenls and general-purpose

financial reports assess:

(a) The nature of such social benefits provided by the Eutity.

O) The key features of the operation of those social benefit schemes; and

(c) The impact of such social benefits provided on the Entity's financial

p€rformance, financial position and cash flows.

(Slole lhe intptct o/ lhc stundard lo lltc Ertlitl, d rclevaut)

Amcndments to

Other IPSAS

resulting frorn

IPSAS 41, Financial

Instrurncrtls

Applicable: l'r JenuarT 2023

a) Arncndments to IPSAS 5, to update the guidancc rclatcd to the

componenls of bonowiug costs which were inadvertently onritted

when IPSAS 4l was issued.

b) Arnctrdrncnls lo IPSAS 30. rcgarding illustrativc oxittrtplcs on hcdgirtg'

and srcdit risk which wcrc inaclvcrturlly ornitlctl wlren IPSAS 4l rvas

issucd.

It



,,
uki SnbcounT, Ilospitol (Nohuru Cou,tttt Gotcrunrcnl)

and Finoncial Stalcmcnts or Thc Ycar liniled -ldh .hna 2022

ond amended standords and interpretolions in issile bnt not yet ellective in lhe S,eor ended

June 2023

c) Aurcndrrrcnts to IPSAS 30, to updatc thc guidancc for accounting for

linancial g,uarantce contracts which wcrc inadvcrlcntly omiltcd whcn

IPSAS 4l was issued.

Amendments to IPSAS 33, to update the guidance on classifying financial

instnunents on initial adoption of accrual basis IPSAS which were

inadvertently ornitted when IPSAS 4l was issued.

(Stute the inpact olthe stondont to the Errlity if relevuul)

Appllcable ld lonaary 2023

r /PMS 22 Disclosurc of Financial lnformation about the General

Govennnenl Scclor.

Amendmertts to refer to the latest System of National Accounts (SNA 2008).

r /P.SIS 39: Enployee Benefits

Now deletes the term composite social security benefits as it is no longer

defined in IPSAS.

o IPSAS 29: l;inancial inslrun ents: Recognition and Meawrcmcnt

Standard no longer included in the 2023 IPSAS handbook as it is now

superseded by TPSAS 4l which is applicable from ld January 2023.

Stote the impuct of the stondord to the Entitv if relevant

l PSAS 43

The standard sets out the principles for the recognition, measurement, presentation,

and disclosure of leases. The objective is to ensure lhal lessees and lessors provide

relevant information in a manner that faithfully represents thosc transactions. 'l'his

information gives a basis for users of financial statements to sssess the eft'ect that

leases have on lhe financial position, financial perfonnance and cashflorvs o[ an

Entity.

Thc new standard rcquircs cntities to rccognisc, nleasure arrd prcscnl inlbnnation on

right of usc asscts atrd lease liabilities.

,\lute tlte e\lu lc(l itrtlutr r rtf thr ttruttlttr tl lu tlt., l..tttit.l' i.l rtlarttttt

-

t)

i

lt.

$tanrli
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,id i I gffective date antl impact

Applicable I" Jonaary 2025



Mirugi Kariaki .SubcounQ' Ilospitol (Nakaru County Govarnnrcnt)
Annaal Reporl ond lrinonciol Statenrcntsfor The Ycar linded -ltlh Jane 2022

IPSAS 44:

Nou- Currcnl

Asscts Hcld

for Sale and

Discontinucd

Operations

i. Assets lhat nlecl the criteria to be classified as held for sale to be measurcd at

the lower of carrying alnoullt and fair value Iess costs to sell and the

dc;rrcciation of such asscts to ccasc and:

It Assets that mect the critcria to be classified as held for sale to be presented

separately in the statement of financial position and the results of
discontinued operations to be presented separately in the staternent of

financial performance.

S;c;,1 ;i,c c::..;r.,:.,:,. i: .,,t.:i q.:i;;t! ;..it.:1r:t1i :, :,: t: ,.j jj:;lt .;,:.,j.;/):,/:.,:

Applicablc l" Jonnary 2025

Thc Standard rcquircs:-

nl. Early adoption of standards

The Entity did not early - adopt any new or amended sandards in the financial yenr or the entily

adopted the/ollowing standords early (state thc standarcls, reasonfor early adoption and impact

on ent ity's finoncial slatemenls.)

lv.

3. Summary Of Significant Aeounting Policies
a) Rcvenue recognition

i) Rcvcnuc from non-cxchenge transactions

Traosfers from other Government entities

Revenues from non-exchange transactions with other government entities are measured at fair value and
recognized on obtaining control ofthe asset (cash, goods, services and property) ifthe transfer is free from
conditions and it is probable that the economic benefits or service potential related to the asset will flow
lo lhe Dntity and can be measured reliably. To the extent that there is a related condition attached tbat
would give rise to a liability to repay the atnounl, lhe amounl is recorded in the statement of financial
position and realised in the statement of financial performance over the usefrrl life of the asset that has

been acquired using such funds.

l0

landard i &.tfcstivc rlalc rnrl rmp ;tct
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f scrvices

gnizcs rcvcnttc l'rotn rendering of scrvices by rcfercncc to the stage of complction whcn thc
he transaction can be estimated reliably. The slage of complction is measurcd by rcfcrence to

inarrrcd to date as a pcrcentage of tolal estimaled labour hours. Where the contracl outcomc

fasured 
reliably, revenue is recognized only to the extent that the exp€nses incurred are

the sale of goods is rccognized when the sigrificant risks and rewards of ownership havc

to the buyer, usually on delivery

and when the amount of revenue can be measured reliably, and it is probabte lhat the economic

ce potential associated with the transaction will flow to the entity
me

e is accrued using the effective yield method. Thc effective yield discounts estimated fuhrre

thougb the expected life of the financial assa to that asset,s nct carrying amount. The method

ld to the p,rincipal outstanding to determine interest income for each period

me

e arising from operating leases on invesfirent properties is accountcd for on a straight-line

lease terms and included in revenue
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nciol Slolencnts Jor

Cou nl.t, Govcrnnrcnl)
The Ycor lindul .lllh Janc 2022Aunuol Rcport and Fino

Noles lo lhc Flnanclol Stotements (Coatinucd)

b) Budgcf informrtion
Tlrc originol budgct for FY 202ll2022was npprovcd by Boarcl ot 5/7/2021 Sutrscqucrrt rcvisions or

additional oppropriations wcrc nrade lo thc approvod budgct in accordancc with sg:oific approvols frotn

the appropriate authorities. 'l.lre additional approprittions nrc addcd to thc origiual budgct by ttre cutity

upon receiving thc rcspcctivc approvals in order to concludc thc final budget. Accordingly, thc Minrgi

Kariuki Sub couuly Hospilal recordcd additioual apprnprialious o[ on lhs FY xxx buclgcl f<rllowirrg thc

Board's approval. Tlte cnlily'.r budgct is prcparcd on a diffcrcnl bnsis lo lhc aclual incornc and cxpcnditurc

disclosed in the financial statclnenls. 'thc tinancial stalcrncnts arc prcpflrcd on accruat basis using a

classilication bascd on thc naturc of cxpcnscs iu thc stalcnrcnl of financial pcrfonnancc. whcrcas thc

budget is prcpared on a castr basis. The amounts in thc financial slalcnrcnls wcrc rccasl from lhc accnral

basis to the cash basis and reclassified by prcscnlation to be oo tlrc samc basis as thc approved budget.

A comparison ofbudget and ac{ual amounls, prepared on a cornparable basis to the approved budgct, is

then presented in thc statcment of cornparisorr of budget and aclual anlounls. In addition to thc Basis

differencg adjusfinents to arnounts in the financial statements are alrc rnade for diffcrcrrccs in thc fomrats

and classification scherncs adopted for the prcsentation of thc financial stalcnrents and thc approvcd

budget. A statement to reconcile the actual anrounls on a cornparablc basis included in the statement of
comparison ofbudget and actual amounls and tlrc acluals as pcr thc statcntcnl offinancial pcrformance

has becn presented on page x:sr under scction xxr of thcsc financial slatctncnts.

l2



nual

c

kl Su hc ou nf' I I osptlal ( N aLa ru ('ou u 1.1' G ovcr n nrc u I )
rl and Flnonclol Stotenrcnts lor |'hc l'ear lindul .ldt Junc 2022

lhc Flnonclal Stolcnrents (('ontinncd)

o rcs

tnd osscls arc recognizcd nel oflhe amounl ofsalcs tax, exccpl:

D Wren the sales tax incurred on a purchase of asscls or services is nol recoverable from thc

lrxation authorily, in which case, the sales tax is recognized as part of thc cosl of acquisition

ofthe asset or as part ofthe expcnse item, as applicable.

) When receivables and payables are stated with the smounl of sales tax included. The net

amount of salcs tax recoverabte from, or payable to, lhe taxation authority is included as part

of receivables or payables in lhe statement of financial position.

tmcnt propeily

t properties are measurcd initially at cost, including transaction costs. The carrying amount

e taplsc€ment cost of components of an cxisting investment property at thc timc that cost is

the reognition criteria are rnet and excludes the costs of day-to-day maintenance of an

pr0perty.

[ropcrty ac4uired through a non-exchange transaction is measured at its fair value at the date

on. Subsequent to initial recognition, investment properties are rneasured using the cost model

reciated over a period of .ur years. tnvcstment properties are derecognizcd either when they

ed of or when the investment property is permanently withdrawn from use and no future

efit or service potential is expected frorn its disposal. The difference between the net disposal

p the carrying arnounl of the asset is recognized in the surplus or deficit in the period of dc-

Transfers are rnade to or frorn investment property only whcn tlrere is a change in use.

, plant and equipment

expenditurc that is directly attributable to lhe acquisition of the iterns. When signrificant

pcny, plaDt and cquipmenl are rcquircd to be replaced ot intervals, lhe enlity recogrrizes suclr

Vidual assets witlr spccific usclul lives and depreciates thcrn accordingly. l.ikcrvisc, rvhen a

ion is pcrformed, its cost is recognizrd irr lhe carrying alnounl of the plmt and eqrriprrrent as

t if lhe rccognition crilcria are salisllcd. Alt ollrcr rcpair and rnaintenancc costs arc rccogrrized

dcficit as irrcurrcd Wlrcrc an asset is acquilotl ilr tr lron-cxclrangc ltursaclion for nil or

fidcration thc assct is initially rrrcasurcd at it.s lirir vrrlrrc
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Mirugi Kariuki Subcounfi, Ilospilal (Nokuru Coun l1t Governncnl)
Annuol R rl and Finonciol Slalemenls or The Year llnded J(lr June 2022

Notes to lhe Finoncial Stalements (Continued)

f) Lcescs

Finance leases are leases that transftr substantially the entire risks and benetits inciclentat to ownership of

the leased item to the Entity. Assets held under a finance lease are capitaliz3;-at the comm€ncement of

the lease at the fair value of the leased property or, if lower, at the present value of thc future minjmum

lease payments. The Entity also recognizes the mciarcd lease liability at the inception of the lease. The

liability recognized is measured as the present value of tlre fuhrre minimum lease payments at initial

recognition.

Subsequant to initial recopition, lease payments are apportioned between finance charges and reduction

of the lease liability so as to achieve I constant rate of interest on the remaining balance of the liability'

Finance charges are recopized as financc costs in surplus or deficit.

An asset held under a finance lease is dcprecidcd over the usefi.rl life of the asset. However, if there is no

reasosable certainty 0rat the Entity wilt obtaiu ownership of rhe asset by the end of the tease term, the

asset is de,pneciated owr the shorter of the estimated useful life of the assct md the lease term.

Operating leases are leases that do not hmsfer substantially all the risks and benefits incidental to

ownership of the leased item to the Entity. Operating lease payments are recogrrized as an operating

exp€Dse in surplus or deficit on a straightJine basis over the lease term.

g) Intangible assets

Intmgible assets acquired separately are initially recognized at cost. The cost ofintangible assets acquired

in a non-exchange transaction is thcir fair value at the date of the exchange. Following initid recogrrition,

intangible assets are carried at cost less any accumulated amortization and accumulated impairment losses'

Int€mally ge,lrerated intangible assets, excluding capitalized dwelopment Gosts, are trot cspitalized and

expenditure is rcflected in surplus or dcficit in the period in which the expeoditure is incurred' The tlseful

life of the intargible assets is assessed as either finite or indefinite'

t
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lo e Flnonclal,ftatcnrents ( (b n tl n a ut)
h) R rth nnd dtvr.lollnrcnI cosls

1'h Enti (]ltlrcnscs rcscnrch c()sls fls incrrrrcd. Developrnenl cosls on an individual projcct arc rccognizc6
lc assqs rvhcn lhc Enlily cal dcnronslralc:

D Thc lochrtical feasibility ofconrpteting thc assct so that the asset will bc availabtc for usc
or sale

asl ll alr

) Its intention to complcte and its ability to use or sell the asset

D The asset will generate fufure economic benefits or service potential

! Thc availability of resources to complete the asset

F The ability to measure reliably the expenditure during development.

II c tial recognition of an assel the asset is carried at cost less any accumulated amortization

d culn ated impairment losses. Amortization of the asset begins when development is complete and

e et ls vailable for use. It is amortized over the period of expected future benefit. During the period

t, the asset is tested for impainnent annually with any impairment losses recognized

atel

n instru ments

A 4t ses the classification, measurement and de-recognition of financial assets and financial

Ii es, duces new rules for hedge accounting and a trew imPairmcnt model for financial assets'

not have any hedge rclationships and therefore the new hedge accounling ntles have no
tity

on Company's financial stalentenls' (amend os appropriale)

cial entisarryconractthatgivesrisetoafinancialass€tofoneentityandafinancialstrum

iti or uity ifftrumentofanotlrerentity.Atinitialrecognition,theentitytneasuresafinancialasset

or n cial I bility at itsfairvalueptusorminus,inthccascofafinancialassctorfinancialliabilitlnot

ugh surp tusordeficit,Eansactioncoststhataredirectlyattributabletotheacquisttlonor

A
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M lr u gi Kori u ki Su bc oil nl)' I I oli p itd I ( N n k u ru ( in t t t.), G tt,e r n n rc n t)
Annuol Repoa nnd l,'lnanciol Slote nrcn 'he llrritr liudad .ldh Juur 2022

Noles lo lhc l;iaanclnl ,Jtalenrcnts (('onilnuul)

Finnncial nsscls

Classificolion of [inencirl rssels

Thc cntitl, classifics its finarrcial nsscls us subv:quently lneasurcd al urnortised cosl, fair vsluc through nct

assctV cquity or fnir voluc llrrough surplus and dcficit on thc bBsis of both the entity's managemcnt modct

for finoncial asscts and lhc conlractuel cash flow characteristics otthe financial assct. A financial assel is

Incasurcd al anrortized cost wlten the financial asset is held within a managem€nl model whose objective

is to hold financial assets in order to collect contractual cash flows and thc contractual terms of lhc

financial asset give risc on specificd dates to cash flows that are solely payments ofprincipal and inlcrest

on the principal outstanding. A financial ass€t is measured at fair value through net assetV equity if it is
held within the management rnodel whose objective is achieved by both collecting contractual cashflows

and selling financial assets 8nd the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to

cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstuding. A
finanbial assct shall be measured at fair value through surplus or dclicit unless it is measured at amortized

cost or fair value througlr net assety equity unless an entity has madc irrevocable election at initial
rccognition for particular investments in equity instruments.

Subsequenl measurement

Based on tlre business modcl and the cash flow characteristics, the entity classifies its financial ass€ts into
amortized cost or fair vdue categories for financial instruments. Movements in fair value are prcscnted in

eithcr surplus or deficit or through net assclV equity subjcct to ccrtain criteria beiag met.

Amo rtized cost

Financial assots that are hcld for collection of contractual cash flows where thosc cash flows represent

solely paymenb of priocipd and intercst, and that are not designued at fair value through surplus or
deficit, are measured al amotliz*d cost. A gain or toss on an inslrurnent that is subsequently measured at

amolliTrd co$ and is not part of a hedging relationship is recognized in profit or loss when the asset is de-
reagniz*d or impairel.Interest incorne from these financial assets is included in finance incolre using

the cffective interest rate rnctfiod.

l6



uki Subcountl' Ilospilal (Nokuru Couttl.l, (;ovcr ntcrtl)
Yeor linded .lFh Junc 2022n al and Financiol Slateorcnl$ Ior T'hc

lo l. e Flnonciol Statcnrcnts (Conilnuwl)

valu throrrgh nel tsscts/ eqrritY

cial thst arc held for collection ofcontractual cash flows and for selling the financial asscts.

e tlre s' cash flows represent solely payrnents of principal and interest, arc meiuiurcd at fair value

ghn assetJ equity. Movernents in the carrying amounl are takcn through net sssets, except for thc

!fimpainncnt gaius or losses, interest revenue and foreign exchange gains and losses whichtl

in surplus/deficit. Interest income from these financial assets is included in finance income

the ve intcrest rate method

AI va

ln cial that do not meet the criteria for amortized cost or fair value through net assetV equity are

fair value through surplus or deficit. A business model where the entity managcs financial

thc objcctivc of realizing cash flows through solely the sale of the assets would result in a fair

gh surplus or deficit model.

ean other receivables

ra and ther receivables are recogni zed at fair values les.s allowances for any uncollectible amounts

ra and er receivables are assessed for impairment on a contiuuing basis. An estimate is made of

ful ivables based on a review of all outstanding amounts at the year endou

rmm t

he t656sseE, on a forward-looking basis, the expected credit loss ('ECL') associated with its

ial Ets carried at amortized cost and fair value through net assetyequity. The entiSr recognizes a

oss low for such losses at each reporting date. Critical estimates and sigrrificant judgments made

anag ent in determining the expected credit loss (ECL) are set out in Note xx

ln cial abilitics

Ia fica on

he classifies its liabilities as subsequently measured at amortized cosl except for financial

abi ities oasured through profit or loss

L

through surplus or deficit

enlity

I

entity

wrtrt

throl

r

r
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Mirugi Korlukl Subcoanly Hospilol (Noktra
Annuol Report oud h-inonciol Stolenrcn ls lor

County Govcrnueut)
I'he Year Ended Jilh Juuc 2022

Noles lo the Finonclal Slalenrcnls (Continaed)

i) lnventorics

Inveotory is mcasurcd al cost upon initial recognition. To lhe extcnt that invcntory was rcccivcd through
non+xchange transactions (for no cost or for a nominal cost), the cost of the inventory is its fair vatue at

the date of acquisition.

Costs incurred in bringing each product to its present location and conditions are accountcd for as foilows:

)Raw materials: purclrase cost using the weighted average cost mcthod.

P Finished goods and work in progress: cost of direot materials and labour, and a proportion of
manufacfuring overheads based on the normal operating capacity but excluding borrowing costs.

After initial recognition, inventory is measured at the lower cost and net realizable value. However, to the

extent that a class of invcntory is distributed or deployed at no charge or for a nominat charge, that class

of inventory is measured at the lower cost and the current replacement cost.Net realizable value is the

estimated selling price in the ordinary course of operations, less the estimated costs of completion and the

estimated costs nec€ssary to make the sale, exchange, or distribution. Inveotories are recognized as an

expense when deployed for utilization or consumption in the ordinary course of operations of tbe Entity.

l8

j) Provisions

Provisions re recognrzd when the Entity has a pres€nt obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a

past eveot, it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits or service potortial

will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation.

Where the Entity expects some or all of a provision to be reimbursed, for example, under au insurance

contract, the reimbursemcnt is recognized as a separate asset only whcn the reimbursement is virtudly

certain.

The expense relating to any provision is presented in the statement of financial pcrformance net of any

rcimbursement.
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c Finonciol Slolcnrcnt:r ((:ontinuctl)

rclating to my provision is prcscttlcd in thc slalcrncnt of financial lrcrfortnancc nct o[ any

cllt

efils

ts nrc cash transfers provided to i) specific individuals and / or households lhat mccl lhc

teria, ii) mitigate the cffects of social risks and iii) Address the need of society as a whole

ises a social benefit as an exp€nse for the social benefit scheme at the same time that it

a liability. The liability for the social benefit scheme is measured at the best estimate of the

ial benefit payments) tlrat the entity will incur in fulfilling the present obligations represented

lity

t linbilities

docs not recognize a contingent liability but discloses details ofany contingencies in the notes

al statetnents unless the possibility of an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits

tid is remote

t assets

does not recognize a contingent asset but discloses details of a possible asset whose existcnce

t on the oscurreoce or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly

oontrol of the Entity in the notes to the financial statements. Contingent rBsets are assessed

to ensure that developments are appropriately reflected in the financial statements. If it has

ly csrlainthat an inflow of economic bcnefits or service potcntial will arisc and thc assct's

measured reliably, the asset and the related revenue are recognized in the financial statemeots

in which the change occurs.

tnd purpose ofreserves

tity creafes and rnaintains reserves in tenns of specific requirements (Enlity to state thc

mainlaincd and appropriate policies adopted')

nges in accounting policies and estimates

rt*ognizeslhe cffccts ofchangcs i1 accounting policy retrospectively 'l'he elfects ofchanges

! polioy are applied prospcctivcty ifretrospective application is irrrpractical

ploycc bcncfits

benefit plans

Jrouiacs rcrirerncnt bcrcfits lbr its orrrployecs attd directo.s. l)el'i'crl corrtribulion plans are

nent bcncfit plans urtdcr wlriclt atr ciltily 1lilys ljxctl co[trilltt I itltts ittto il scparatc clltity (a

t9
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nnuol
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Noles ro the l'lnoncial ,lloIcments ((bnt|nacd)

fund). ald rvill hnvc no lcgnl or conslnrclivc olllignlion to puy lirrthcr contrillutions if thc fund docs not

hold srrllicicnt osscls l() pny all cnrploycc llcncfils rcltting lo crrrploycc scrvicc in thc

ctttrctrl and prior pcriods. 'l'hc contritrulions lo fund obligatiolrs for llrc payrncnt of rctircmcnl bcncfits arc

chnrycd tryninst incotttc in lhc ycar in whiclr lhcy bcconrc payablc. Dcfincd bcncfil plans arc post-

cnlployrncnl bcnclit plans othcr than dcfincd-contribution plans. Thc defined bcnefit funcls arc actuarially

valucd tri-annually on thc projcctcd unit crcdit mcthod basis. Deficits identificd are rccovercd through

lump-sum paymcnts or increascd fulurc contributions on a proportional basis to all participating

employers. The contributions and lump surn payments reduce the post-employment benefit obligation.

n) Forcign curnenc? transactions

Transactions in foreigr cunencies are initially accounted for at the ruling rate of exchange on the date of
lhe transaction. Trade creditors or debtors denominatcd in foreigr cutrency are reported at the staternent

of financial position reporting date by applying the exchange rate on that date. Exchange differences

arising from the settlement ofcreditors, or from the reporting ofcreditors at rates different from those at

which they were initially recorded during the period, are recognized as income or expcnscs in the period

in which they arise.

o) Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs are capitalized again$ qualifoing asseb as part of property, plant and equipment. Such

borrowing costs are capitalized over the period during whicb the ssset is being acquired or constructed

and borrowings have been incuned. Capitalization ceases when constnrction of the asset is complete.

Further borrowing costs are charged to the statement of financial performance.

p) Related perties

The Entity regards a related party as 8 person or an entity with the ability to exert control individually or

jointly, or to exercise significant influence over the Entity, or vice versa. Members of key management

arc regarded as related parties and comprise the directors, the CEO/principal and senior managers.

q) Service concession srrangements

The Eotity analyses all aspccts of service concession iurangements that it cnters inlo in detcrmining the

appropriate accounting treatment and disclosure requirements. ln particular, where a privatc part1,

contributes an asset to the arrangement, the lintily recognizes that asset when, and only rvhen, it controls

or rcgulatcs thc scrviccs. Thc opcralor must providc togclhcr with thc assct, to whonl it must providc thcm.

and at what pricc. In tlre casc ol'asscls othcr than 'rvlrole-of'-lit'e' assuls, il cuutrols, through orrrrcrslrip,

beneficial entitlcmcnt or othcrwisc - any significarrl rcsidual intcrcsl in tho assct at thc cnd ol'thc

arrangement. Any asscts so rccogrtiz.r:d arc rucasurcd at thcir ljrir valuc.'lir thc cxtcut that au ussct hns

20
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Itcr') izrxl. llrc /:)rrrlt,nlso rccogrriz.cs n corrcsltorrrling lilbilily. a<ljrrslc<l hy a cash considcratiott

lll ()f ivctl

(' h tnrl crrsh cquivnlcnls

iut tl fh c<luivalcpts courprisc caslr on hand and cash al bank, shorl-lcnn dcposils on call ancl higltly

rqu ln \l shxcnls rvith an original maturity of three monlhs or lcss, which are rcadily convcdihlc to

ll rrts ofcash a1d are subject to insignificant risk ofchanges in valuc. Bank accounl balanccs

ncl dc orrnts held at the Central Bank of Kenya and at various commcrcial banks al the cnd of the

n cial For the pgrposes ofthese financial staternents, caslr and cash equivalents also include short

cas imprests and advances to authorised public officcrs and/or institutions which were not

u or accounted for at the end ofthe financial year

rrtive figuress) Com

ren $ary comparative figrrres for the previous financial yeathavebeen amended or reconfigured

to the required changes in Presentation.

uent events

be.en no events subsequent to the financial year end with a sigrificant impact on the financial
0 Su

fq the year ended June 30,20XX

igni nt Judgments and Sources of Estimation Uncertainty

e on of the Entity's financial slatements in conformity with IPSAS requires management to

jrrd ents, estimates and assumptions that affect tlre reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets

d {s, and the disclosurc of cootingent liabilities, at the end of the reporting period. However'

about these assumptions and estimates could rezult in outcomes that require a material

do the carrying arnount of the asset or liabitity affected in frrture periods.

S n txtr u n l.l' I I o :,*p i to I ( N u I n n t ( i t u u l.l' G ove r n nrc u l)
and f'lrnnclol ,\trtlrnu'ntstttr'l'he l'enr tiniled.lilr Jnne 21122

T

dj

st t end assumptions

le ey umptions conceming the future and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the rcportin8

that ve a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amottnls of asscts arld

la ities thin the next financial year, are described belorv. Thc Entity based its assunrptions and

param etcrs available when the consolidated financial statenrents rvere prepared. llonercr'ates ns(r

ts llr8, Cr mstaflces and assunrptions about lirturc developmcnts lnay cltartge dtte to nttrkct cltutgcs ol

trc rnst s arising beyon<t lIe corttrol of thc ljntity. Such cltartgcs arc rcUcctctl in tltc it-ssuttr pl t.rtts

h thc r.( IPSAS I .140)
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Mhagi Korlnkl Subcoun0' lloslrllol (Nn*aru Counl.s, Govcntnrcnl)
Annual Rcport and lrinanciol Slalcncnlsfor T'hc Ycar linded J|h Janc 2t122

Notes to the Flnanclol Slatenrcnls (Continnul)

l,,lseful livcs ond residunl vnlucs

'Ihc usclirl livcs nnd rcsidual valucs of asscls arc asscssed using lhe following indisalors to inform

potcrrtial future usc artd value frorn disposal:

proccsses.

Changes in tlre market in relation to the assct

Provisions

Provisions were raised and management determined an estimatc based on the information available.

Additional disclosure of these estimates of provisions is included in Note xxx. Provisions are measured at

the management's best estiruate of the expcnditure required to settle the obligation at the reporting date

and arc discounted to pres€nt value wltere the effect is materiat.

(Inchde prolsions oppltcable lor yt r organi,elioa e,g proision lor bd debts, Prori$i. rs of obsolete stak and hav

managcmenl esllnlates thesc ptovisiats).
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rccordcd both asi inconrc and cxpcnsc lor contplclcttcss offinancial sttttcucnls)
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n iccs /cc relates to other charge.s nol listed abovc)
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8.

Clinical Costs

Costs
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Nolas to lhe l"inanciol ,flak'nu'nt:s (('ttrtliuuttl)

llo:rrrl of lltnrtrtgcntr'ttl lirllcnscs

10. Repairs And Maintcnance

ll. Geoeral ExPenses

r 9 r,000.00

0Clrlirruart's I lotrorariit

Sittirrg allorvancc
l9l,00o.ooTotal

t25,s68- Buildings
39,800Contputers and accessories
I I2,600Maintenance of civil works
277,968Total repairs and meintenancc

t73,345
Sanitary

486712
Food and ration

3,026
Bank charges

253,630
Electricity expen SES

160.824
Fuel and Lubricants

l l l,090owancealonodatilnmaccodanravelT
r 3 r,000

Printing and stationery
39,090

Water and sewerage costs
80,000.ard rnobile PhTel olle seryloes
27t,890

Intemet exPenses

t20,000
Staff training and dcveloPrnent

I,8J0,607
Total Gcncral FixPcnses

24

I )rrr r illlirrtt
t \ ltBlt)l

h.h,

FY 2$ttn2
Kshsl)r'rcriplion

Fl',202u22
}r.shs
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14. lnvcntorics

0Plr irnu accrrl ical su rcs
0Maintcllatlcc stl lics

Food su lics
0Lincn and clothi licssu
0Clcanin rnalerials str lies
0Gcneral str res
0Less: on for i cnt ofstocks
0Total
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tliru gi Kariu ki Su bcou ntl' H ospitol (Noku ru Cou uty Goventment)
Annuol Reporl aud Fiuoncial Stalenrcntslor The Year Ended 30h lune 2022

Notes lo the Financial Stnlenrcnts (Continue$

15. Properg', Plant and Equipnrent

I Cost

,{t l.lull lQlQ

Additions

Disposals

Trorsfers adjustrnents

Ar Jorh Juoe 202 t

.At I 'r Jull' 2021

.{dditrons

Disposals

Transfcr ad_tustments

At 30rh June7027

At lJul1, 2020

000 000 0.00 0.00 0.00 000 0.00 000

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 000 0.00

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

000 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

0.00 0.00 0.00000 000 0.00 0.00 0.00

0.00 0.00

0.00 0.00 0.000.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

0.00 0.00 000 0.00 0.00 000 0.00

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

Depreciation and
impairmenl

ntrIal 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

000 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.1']0

U.UU U.UU U.UU U.UU U.UU U.ULI

III T

I I

I
II II

a

@
@g!l!l

0.00 I

0.00 ,

0.110

lsposa s
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Llirugi Karinki Subcounty Hospilol (Nakaru Counly Governnunt)
Aunuol Report q,!d F!t,q!!!to![!!gme!!t11py lhe Yeor Ended 3F lune 2022

Impairment 0.00 000 0.00 000 0.000.00 0.00

At 30 June 2021 0.00 0.00 0.000.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

At July 2021 0.00 000 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.000.00

Depreciation 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.000.00 0.00 0.00

Disposals 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

Impairment 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

Transfcr/adjustnent 0.00 0.00 0.00 000 0.00 0.00 0.00

At 30rh Juoe 2022 000 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 000 0.00

Net book values

At 30h June 2021 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 000 0.00 0.00 0.00

0.00 000 0.00At 30u June 2022 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

I
I

rI
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riu*i Suhcortrrt.y I lospilul (Nuku ru ('outtt.1, Uttvcrnnrcnt)
anil l7,nanclal Stntenrcnlsfrtr'fhe Yenr lindeil 3llh tunc 2022

h-i no nc ia l,Ttot e nrc nts (Conti nu ed)

And Olhcr Paythlcs

Gcnerated from Operetions

of staternent should tie lo lhe cash flow seclion on nel cash floYs fronr/ used in

ial Risk Management

vities expose it to a variety offinancial risks including crcdit and liquidity risks and

in foreign curency. The company's overall risk management programme focuses

ity of changes in the business environmenl and secks to minimise the potential

f such risks on its performance by sctting acceptable levels of risk. The company

any risks and has in place policies to ensure that credit is only cxtended to customcrs

credit history.

ial risk management objectives and policies arc detailed bclorv:

risk

to credit rish which is the risk thal a countcrparty will be unable to pay

when duc. Crcdit risk arises from cash and cash cquivalcnts, and dcposits rvith banks,

and othcr rcccivablcs and availablc-for-salc financial invcstmcnts. Managcnrcnt

quality ofcach customer, taking into account its financial position, post expcrience

lndividual risk limits are sct bascd on internal or cxtcrnal asscsslncnt in accordancc

thc <Jirectors. 'l'hc amounts prcscntcd in thc stutcmcnt ol'linancial positron an: nct

or doubtful rcccivablcs, cstimatcd try lhc conrpiln),'s nronagcrncnt bascd orr prior

thcir asscssnrent ol'thc cunct'tl cconorrric crrvironrne rrl. l'hc cnrrying amount ol

2

d

9

the

(fhe I

of

not

fn

{ntity'
i)c

{ntity
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rvtll as

ofher

limits

l.l 2u2tt2022
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,llllrugi liorlu,,l suhtttunt.t, ilosprlor (Nakuru couttt.t,(io,artrtttcttl)
.4nnuol Raporr and |'inonclal stott tiu,nts.fitr T'rtt, l,t ur litttlcil .lut, .ruttt, 2022

fl.t,(r ,o thc Financlul Stutcnrcnrr (Lirntlauco

linancirrl sscls rccotdcd irt thc l'rlrlrrcial slulcnlcnts r r:1tr cscrrl irrg llc crrlity's rna.rirnurn cxlxJsurc to
crcdit risk s illtorrl litLirtg uccotrrtt ol'lltc r,rtluc ol'nn), cullntcral .,ltllirrctl is rnarlc up .s lirl6ws;

0.00

0.00

..\t J0.Iunc 2022

0.00
(NR 'l'ltc tonls colunu .sluntld lu' ttt tlta imlivkluql alcnrcnt.s tt!'c.rcdit ri.rk disclosad in lha artily's
s to lL'tnc tt t of.linanciol Jxr.t i t i ot,

The credit risk associated rvith these receivables is minimal and the allowance for uncollectible

amounts that the compan), has recognised in the financial statoments is considcred adequate to

cover any potentially irrecoverable amounts. The entity has significant concentration of credit risk

on amounts due from xxxx

Thc board of managcment scts thc company's credit policies and objcctives and lays down

parameters within which the various aspects of credit risk management are operated.

(ii) Liquidity risk management

Ultimate rcsponsibility for liquidity risk managcmcnt rcsts rvith the hospital's board of

tnanagcmcnt s,ho have built an appropriate liquidity risk managemcnt framework lbr thc

managemcnt of thc cntity's short, medium and long-tcrm funding and liquiditv manrgcmcnt

requircrnents. 1'hc cntill, managcs liquidity risk through conlinuous rnonitoring of tbrccasts and

actual caslr llorvs.

Thc table bclorv rcprcscnts cash florvs pavahlc b), thc conrpanl' undcr non-dcrir'ltilc' l'inirnciitl

liabilitics by thcir rcrnaining conlraclual nraturitics nt thc rclxlrtirrg dnlc. 
-l'hu' 

iuuourlls discloscd rn

tlrc table are thc contractuitl urrdiscounlcd clsh llorvs. llalauccs r,luc s ithin ll tttotttlts c(ltlrl tllcrr'

currying bulattccs. as thc inrl)lcl ol disc(ttlttttlg is tl()t slStltlicittlt

At -:0 Junc l()10

0.00
Rcccir tbL.s tttxu cschangc transactions

Rcccilntrlcs liorrr -non-cxr.hrrrr c transac(ions 0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

o.oo
llcnk lralanccs
l'ot:rl

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00
9.00
0.00

0.00

0.0t)

0.00 0.00 000 0.00
0.00 0.00

Rcccivables from exchan
Rcceivatrlcs liorn -non-excha

lransactions

transactiolls
Bank lralanccs 0.00 0.00

0.00
0.00

000
0.00

I'otal 0.00 0.00 0.00

lll

I .rlal rmrnrnl I rrllr t,

rl rr



S

or

to

h

da

Kariuki Subcounly llospilol (Nakaru County Govemmenl)
Ycar lirulcrl 3dh June 2022ond Financinl Slalcnails or The

lhc Financiol Slalcnrcnls (Cotttittuctl)

Market risk

tut t^ put in place an intemal audit function to assist it in assessing thc risk faccd by

on an ongoing basis, evaluatc and test the design and effectiveness of its internal

and operational controls. Market risk is the risk arising from changes in rnarket prices,

st rate, equity prices and foreign excltarge rates which will affcct thc entity's incorne

and control market risk exposures within acceptable parameters, while optimising the

I responsibility for managing rnarket risk rests with the Audit and Risk Management

y's Finance Departrnent is responsible for the development of detailed risk rnanagcrnent

ect to revicw and approval by Audit and Risk Managernent Cornrnittee) and for the

rnplementation of lhose policies. There has been no change to the entity's exposure to

or the way it manages and mcasures the risk.n

Ar3 ) Junc 2022

0.00 0.00Trac payables 000

000 000Cun rt portion of borrowings 000

0.00kol s 0.00 0.00lons

0.00Defr n 0.00ed iucome 0.00 0.00

0.00cErnp yce benefit obligation 0.00 0.00 0.00

Tott I 0.000.000.00 0.00

At3 ) June 2022

TraC 0.00payables 0.00 0.00 0.00

)lCun 0.00rt portion of borrowings 0.00 0.00 0.00

Prol S 0.00rons 0.00 0.00 0.00

i'I 0.00Defe ed income 0.00 0.00 0.00

EmF c 0.00yec benefit obligation 0.00 0.00 0.00

0.00 0.00Totr I 0.00 0.00

.rl

t
a

(iil)

r+

t l::i n I

rnonlh

hlhr. hrhr h

E ittl

0.00

0.00

0.00

thd enti

acfountil

asi

of its holding of financial instnrments. The objective of rnarket risk managernent is

refurn.
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tlirugi Xoriuhi Subcount1, Ilospilal (Nokuru Conut.l' Goverunrcnl)
The Yeor Endeil 3(lh lme 2022,.lnnual Rcporl ond l;'inancial Stolenrcnts.[or

^\rlcs 
lo thc l;inonciol Stflterrtents (Contiuued)

o) Forcign currcncy risk
'the entity hcs transactional cunency exposures. Such exposure arises through purchases ofgoods

and scn'ices lltat arc donc in cunencies other lhar lhc local currcncy. Invoiccs denominatcd in

foreignr cttrrctcies are paid allcr 30 days from the date of lhc invoicc and conversion at lhc limc of

payment is done rrsing the prevailing exchange rate. The carrying amount of the entity's foreign

currency denominated moretary assets and rnonetary liabilities at the end of the reporting period

are as follows:

At 30 Junc 2022
0.000.000.00Financial assets (investrnents, cash, dcbtors)

Liabilities
0.000.00000

Trade and other payables
0.000.00000

0.00o.00 0.00Net forcign currency liab

II

The entity manages foreign exchange risk from future comrnercial transactions and recognised assets

and liabiiities by projecting expected sales proceeds and matching the same with expected payments.

Fo reign cu rrenc? sensitivity stralysis

Tlre following table A.rourt,ut.i the ellbct ott the colllpany's statcrlletrt ol'tinancial

perfonnalcconapplyinglhesensirivitylorarcasonablepossiblechangeinthecxchangerate

of the tlrrcc nlain lransaction crrrrencics, rvilh all othcr variablcs held conslant' The rcversc

would also occur if the Kenya Shillirrg apprecinrcd willt all other variables lteld cortstant'

0.000.000.00

0.000000.00

debtors
A t30 June2022

Financial assets investments

Trade and other

Liabilities
es

0.000000.00
Borrowin

0.000.000.00
Net forei curTen iabI

I

20xx 0 0()0 0()I0uuEuro

tj

I xshs

KShs C)ther currencies Io tal

Kshs I t(rhsKshs

rlil(;t1 t i.rl

I :l

:'
r l.

l ffr.rr 'rn Prrrlil
Irr.l0r'r'Iil\
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risk

risk is the risk that the entity's fira,cial condition may be adversely affectcd as a

cltangcs in intcrcst rate lcvels. Thc company's inlercst rate r.isk ariscs frorn bank
This exposcs thc cornpa,y to cash flow intercst rate risk. Thc interest rate risk

scs lnainly fi'orn intercst rate lnovernents on thc cornpany's deposits

cnl of intcrcst ratc risk

e the interest rate risk, rnanagetnent has endcavoured to bank with instirutions that

ble inlerest rates

analysis

analyscs its interest rate exposure on a dynarnic basis by conducting a sensitivity
is involvcs detennining the impact on profit or loss of defined ratc shifts. The

analysis for interest rate risk assumes that all other variables, in particular foreign
rates, remain constant. The analysis has been performed on the same basis as thc

of the ycar figures, the sensitiviqr analysis indicates thc irnpact on the statement
performance if current floating interest rates increase/decrease by one percentage

dccrease/increasc ofKShs xxx (20xx: KShs xxx). A rate increase/deqease of 5%o

It in a decrease/increasc in surplus of KShs xxx (20xx - KSlrs xxx)

apital Risk Management

vc of thc c'tity's capital risk management is to safeguard the Hospital's ability
as a going conccrn. Tlre entity capital slructurc cornpriscs of thc lbllo$,ing

() (x)

() (x)
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tt'
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iVlirugi Koriuhi Suhcoun l.t' llosttitttl (NoAuru (,ou ttl.1, (itn,tnt naul)
l'rur llnilail -lOth

Artnuol rt ond l;inont-inl ,\tnte ,rt(,rrls .ftr'l'ht .lunc 2022
Tolal firnrls (l (x)

19. Rclst(d porty Balances
Naturc of l.clsted party rclationships

Entities and other parlics relatcd to the entity include those parties who have the ability to
exercise control or exercise significant influence over its operating and financial decisions.
Related parties include mana8ement personnel, their associates, and close family members.

xxx county Govc'rnmcnt is the principal shareholder of t he cntity, holding 100% of the cntity,s cquity
intcrcst The Natiooal Govcmmcnt of Kcnya has provided full guarantees to all long-tcrm lendcrs of the
entity, both domestic and external. Thc related parties include:

i) The National Government;

ii) The County Govemment;

iii) Board of Directors;

iv) Key Management

o (x)

l'olal lrorrorvirr s ooo ().ol)
Lcss: cnsh aurl blrrk balanccs (0.00) (0 0o)

('.\'(t,J *t.rlr otttl cosh /.7aquctN t/dctl I attval, ) 0.00 0.00
Gcaring

O OOyo 0.0OYo

Transactions with related pa rties

a) Services offered to related parties
Services to xxx 0.00 0.00
Sales of services to xxx 0.00 0.00
Total 0.00 0.00

b) Grants from the Government
Grants frorn County Govcmment 0.00 000
Grants frorn the National Covenrrnent Entities 0.00 0.00
Donations in kirrd 0.00 0.00
'fotal

0.00 0.00

c) Expcnscs incurrcd on bchalfofrelaled party

0.00Paymenls of salarios arrd wagcs lbr xxx curployecs
Payrnents for goods and scrviccs lbr xxx

0.00

0.00

l,l

0.()0

I)cscriptrr.rn
2020/zl

Kshs[r-sh s

212U22
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20.

21.

2.

u
ki Subcounty llospltal (Nakuru

ond l,'lnanclol Statcnrcrrlt (rr
County Govcrnnrcnl)
Thc Ycar linded 3dh June 2022

ts After The Reporting period

gre were no rnaterial adjusting and non- adjusting evcnrs after the reporting period.

rre And Hotdiog Entity

entity is a state corporation/ or a scrni- Autonomous Government Agcncy under the
istry of Health. Its ultimate parent is tbe Government of Kenya.

fmancial statements are presented in Kenya Shillings (Kshs)

I

T )l I
0.(x) r,.0()

d h

0.00 0.00
C

0.00 0.00
C

0.00 0.00

managcmcnl compcnsntion

pcnsation to the medical Su

tal

clors' cnrolunrcnts

p
pcnsation to kcy managctncnt

0.00 0.00
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XIX. .{ppendices

Guidance Notes:

(i) Use the sanre reference numbers as contained in the externar audit report.

fl:HffiIsue/observation" 
and "manageme.t comments", required above, from the final exremal audit report that is sigped by

t"" 
,'#;;:'r'#;ffr{ffi',:X"1scuss 

the timeframe with the appointed Focar point persons rvitrrin your eutity responsibre the for

(ir1 Indicate the status of "Resolved" or 'Not Resolved" by the date of submitting this report to National Treasury.

(it)

.{ccounting Olficer
(l'o he ngrcd bt, the ac.counting olficer of the Hospital)

s
'a.

a
I36

( t

fpnen-dix I: Progress on Fo[ory Up Of Auditor Recommeudrtions
The follorving is thc'sunrmary of issues oi"Juy tt. txternal auditor, and management conmeirts that were provided to thc auditor. we havenominated focal persoirs to resolve the various issr.r 

^ rt "* i"r;;;rhffi;sociated tine fi-ame within which we expect rhe issues ro beresolved.

{trtus;
(Rerolved / \ot

Rsolved)

Tirnsfr.rrle .

(Pur e daU what
er.ped lhe isrue t

resohei)

\lalagement corrmen6

l(e ft,r enct No on the
t, tlcirral ludit Repo rl

I ssut i Observations from
\uditor


